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South Bound Brook Public Schools
122 Elizabeth Street
South Bound Brook, NJ 08880
732-356-0018, 356-0621 (fax)

February 21, 2023

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
South Bound Brook School District
County of Somerset, New Jersey 08880

Dear Board Members:

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the South Bound Brook School District
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the management of the South Bound Brook Board of Education.
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in
all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds of the district. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the district's financial activities
have been included.

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report has four sections: Introductory, Financial,
Statistical and Single Audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the
district’'s organization chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes
the general purpose financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's report
thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information,
generally presented on a multi-year basis. The district is required to undergo an annual
single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Uniform Guidance and the State of
New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants,
State Grants and State Aid Payments.” Information related to this single audit, including
the auditor’s report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and findings and recommendations, is included in the single audit section
of this report.



REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

The South Bound Brook School District is an independent reporting entity within
the criteria adopted by the GASB as established by the NCGA Statement No. 3.
All funds of the District are included in this report.

The South Bound Brook School District provides a full range of educational
services appropriate to students in grades pre-k through 8. These services are
provided for regular, as well as disadvantaged students. The South Bound Brook
Board of Education and Bound Brook Board of Education have a sending/receiving
agreement, with South Bound Brook sending its high school students in grades 9-
12 to Bound Brook High School as tuition students. The budgeted cost for 2021-
2022 was $18,801 per student. Some of the district’s students, grades 9-12, attend
the Somerset County Vocational-Technical School District either part time or full
time. There are also some disadvantaged students who are placed out of the
district in order for them to receive an appropriate education. The district completed
the 2021-2022 school year (June 30, 2022) with a PK-8 enroliment of 435 students.
The following details the changes in the student enroliment of the district over the
last five years:

AVERAGE DAILY ENROLLMENT

School Prek-8 Students Sent Total Resident Percent
Year Enroliment Qut of Disfrict Enroliment Change
2016-17 455 131 586 {0.98%)
2017-18 452 131 583 {0.98%)
2018-19 438 124 562 {0.96%)
2018-20 444 127 571 1.60%
2019-20 444 127 571 1.60%
2020-21 427 135 562 {1.58%)
2021-22 435 142 577 2.67%)

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The Borough of South Bound Brook is the smallest municipality in Somerset County.
It covers an area of .77 square miles. The business development is limited to a strip
along both sides of Main Street. This area has completed streetscape improvements
aimed at a revitalization of the business district. The borough has no large industry
and has no land to pursue industrial growth. This absence of major industry has
resulted in one of the higher tax rates in Somerset County. Retail development
projects are planned for the downtown area which will result in higher tax revenues.



MAJOR INITIATIVES

The South Bound Brook School District continues to evaluate facilities in order to
improve energy efficiency and maintain facilities in a prudent manner. To this end,
the Board of Education continued to implement maintenance and improvements
developed with the school’s architect of record, Tokarski & Millemann. Projects in
this year’s budget included an upgrade for the electrical service in classrooms in the
middle school to support technology needs and a renovation of the faculty/staff
space. The technology office also was renovated to provide for more efficient
operation and storage. In addition, the technology infrastructure was upgraded and
more wireless access points were installed to improve internet access in all areas of
the building.

Significant strides have been made in the school district's instructional program. The
school continues to improve its technological capacities in order to accommodate
NJSLA testing requirements and infuse technology into instruction at all levels. To
this end, Google Chromebooks and other multimedia devices have been purchased
for a 1 to 1 initiative in grades K through 8, and the district continues to improve
infrastructure to meet additional demands. The district has also continued to refine
in-classroom technology through the installation of casting devices and software in
order to enable interactive classroom environments between students and staff.

Through expanded opportunities for professional development, improved curriculum
materials, and increased device availability, the district successfully made strides in
towards becoming a fully integrated Google School.

The district's Leader in Me program, a school wide cultural approach that unifies the
student body and celebrates their unique gifts, continues to expand in its eleventh
year of implementation. Based on Stephen Covey’s world renown “7 Habits of Highly
Effective People”, the Leader in Me has created a cultural paradigm shift and provides
a common language and focus to staff, students, and parents, empowering students
to take a proactive approach to their learning and behavior. The school has reached
the milestone of becoming a designated Lighthouse School. Each year a Leadership
Day is held to showcase the students’ leadership abilities. This event is attended by
influential community members and interested school districts from across the state.



INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS

Management of the district is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the district are protected from
loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance that these objectives are met. The concept
of reasonable assurances recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed
the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the district also is responsible
for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs.

The internal control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the district
management.

As part of the district’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and
state financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the district has
complied with applicable laws and regulations.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

In addition to internal accounting controls, the district maintains budgetary controls.
The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the
municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund and the
special revenue fund. The final budget amount, as amended for the fiscal year, is
reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase
commitments on a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year end are either
canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year.
Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance
at June 30, 2022.



10.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS

The district's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as
promulgated by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The
accounting system of the district is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are
explained in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 1.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR-END

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial
section of the report, the district continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial
management.

You should review, in detail, the management’s discussion and analysis for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022 for Financial Summaries.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

There were no bonds cutstanding as of June 30, 2022.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The investment policy of the district is guided in large part by state statute as detailed
in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 2. The district has adopted a cash
management which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected
from loss under the provision of the Government Unit Deposit Protection Act
("GUDPA”"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect government units from loss of
funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires
government units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general
liability, automobile liability, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and
fidelity bonds.



11. OTHER INFORMATION

A. Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by an independent

certified public accountant or registered municipal accountants. The accounting
firm of Suplee, Clooney & Company, CPA's, was selecied by the Board of
Education. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the
audit is also designed to meet the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and State
of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. The auditor's report on the basic financial
statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is
included in the financial section of the report. The auditor's report relating
specifically to the single audit is included in the single audit section of this report.

12, ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

We would like to express our appreciation fo the members of the South Bound
Brook School Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens
and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full support to the
development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this
report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of the secretary/bookkeeper, administrative secretary and treasurer
(consultant).

Respectfully submitted,
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SuPrLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 67090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@senco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education :
Borough of South Bound Brook School District
County of Somerset

South Bound Brook, New Jersey 08880

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities and each major fund of the South Bound Brook School District, in the County
of Somerset, State of New Jersey (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities
and each major fund of the District as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, audit requirements prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey, the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (the “Uniform Guidance”) the audit requirements of State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-
08 “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid." and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards and provisions
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

10



SuprLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY
Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, for the year ended June 30, 2022,
the District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87, Leases. Qur
opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards, the Uniform Guidance, the State of New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08 and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihcod
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

in performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards the Uniform
Guidance, the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 and Government Auditing Standards, we:

+ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures inciude examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

11



SuprLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Suppiementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1 through
C-3, the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions in Exhibit L-1 through L-4 and
the schedules related to accounting and reporting for postretirement benefits other than pensions
(OPEB) in Exhibits M-1 and M-2 are presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’'s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary
information schedules and data such as the combining statements and individual fund financial
statements, and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance,
as listed in the table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance, New Jersey's OMB Circular
15-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid,” and the
State of New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance, are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statemenis as a whole.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

12



SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information
and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement
of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 21, 2023 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and

Jmﬂ (Mw *&*M/

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Bl 1), ).

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

February 21, 2023
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
SOUTH BOUND BROOK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

This section of the South Bound Brook School District’'s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
presents our discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended
on June 30, 2022, Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and
the District’s financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

Management’'s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information
specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 —~ Basic Financial
Statemenis-Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for the State and Local Governments. Certain
comparative information between the current fiscal year (2021-2022) and the prior fiscal year (2020-
2021) is presented in the MD&A. in fiscal year 2022 the District implemented GASB Statement No. 87-
Leases.

Financial Highlights
¢ Revenue from governmental activities accounted for $14,547,885.00 or 98.04 percent of total
school district revenue. The other 1.86 percent of revenue was generated by the business type
activities.

s Governmental activities revenues exceeded expenditures by $303,414.10.

¢ The District reduced its outstanding long-term debt by $805,732.31, which includes $295,000.00
of bonds payable and $302,796.00 of net pension liability as actuarially determined by the State.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This Annual Comprehensive Financial Report ("ACFR”) consists of three parts: Management's
Discussion and Analysis (this section), The Basic Financial Statements, and Required Supplementary
Information. The Basic Financial Statements include two kinds of statements that present different views
of the District, District—wide Financial Statements and Fund Financial Statements.

» District-wide Financial Statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the
District’s overall financial status.

+ Fund Financial Statements report the District's operations in more detail than the District-wide
statements on individual parts of the District, the Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds and
Fiduciary Funds.

e Governmental Funds Statements tell how basic services such as regular and special education
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

16



BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
SOUTH BOUND BROOK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED
« Proprietary Funds Statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities
the District operates like a business, which include food services.

¢ Fiduciary Funds Statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the
District acts sclely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others.

The notes to financial statements are also included, which are an integral part of the financial statements.
The information in the notes provides detailed data on the District's financial operations.

Required supplementary information further explains and supports the financial statements with a
comparison of the District’s budget for the year. Exhibit A-1 reflects how the various parts of this annual
report are arranged and related to one another.

District-wide Financial Statements

The District-wide Financial Statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of
the District's assets and liabilities. All current year's revenue and expenses are accounted for in the
statement of activities regardiess of when cash is received or disbursed.

The District-wide Financial Statements report the District’'s net position and how they have changed. Net
position, the difference between the District's assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the District’s
financial heaith or position. Overtime, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are an indicator
of whether its financial position has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be a result
of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-financial factors include the District’s property tax
base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition, required educational
programs and other factors.

In the District-wide Financial Statements, the District's activities are divided into two categories,
governmental and business-type activities.

¢  Governmental activities - All of the District's programs and services are reported here including,
but not limited to regular and special education instruction, support services, operation and
maintenance of plant facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities. Property taxes
and state formula aid finance most of these activities.

» Business-type activilies - These services are provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. District charges fees to help it cover
the costs of certain services it provided. The food service activities are reported as business
activities.
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
SOUTH BOUND BROOK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds, focusing on
major funds. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding
and spending on particular programs. Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants.
The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (i.e. long-term
debt) or to show that it is properly using ceriain restricted revenues (i.e. entitlement grants).

The District maintains two financial funds;

Governmental Funds: The District's activities reported in governmental funds focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending
in the future years. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting that measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's
general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information
helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the
near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or differences) between
governmental activities (reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds statements is reconciled in the financial
statements.

Proprietary Funds: Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the District-wide financial
statements. The District's enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its
business-type activities but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flow.

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole. Table 1 on
the next page reflects the District’'s net position as a whole. Table 2 reflects the changes in net position
from operating resuits.
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Table 1

Condensed Statement of Net Position

BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL. DISTRICT
SOUTH BOUND BROOK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

The largest portion of the District's net position is its net investment in capital assets. Restricted net
positions include those items that are subject io external restrictions {(e.g. for capital projects,
maintenance, capital, emergency and tuition reserves, and excess fund balance in the general fund).

Construction projects were completed and net investment in capital assets increased. Unrestricted net
position is at a large deficit due to the net pension liability.

Current and
Other Assels
Capital Assels

Total Assets

Deferred Quiiiows
Retated fo Pensions

Long-Term
Liabilites
Short-Term
Liabililes

Tolad Liabilites

Deferred Inflows
Relaked to Pensions

Net Position:
Net investment
in Capital
Assels
Restricted
Unrestricted {Defici)

Total Net
Position

Total
Governmental Activiies Business-Type Acliviies Totat School Distict Percentage
FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 Change
$3,554,128.13 $4,210,995.20 $128,225.81 $79.046.95 $3,682,354.94 $4,290,042.16 (14.17%)
8,961,828.78 8,892 247 88 28 ,632.41 11,068.48 8,990,461.19 8,803,316.36 0.98%
12,515,957 .91 13,103,243.08 156,858.22 90,115.44 1267281613 13,193,358.52 {3.95%)
544,079.00 695,940.00 544 079.00 695,940.00
1,119,505.69 1430,238.00 ,119,505.89 1,430.238.00 {21.73%)
189,055.84 978,739.80 2491178 14,752.84 213,967 .62 993,492.64 (78.46%)
1,308,561.53 2,408,977.80 2491178 14,752.84 1,333,473.31 2,423,730.64 {44.98%)
783,900.60 726,044 .00 783,900.00 726,044 .00
8,961,828.78 8,597,241.88 2883241 11,068.48 8,990,461.1% 8,608,316.36 4.44%
3,115434.05 344121542 3,115,434.056 344121542 (9.47%;)
(1,109,687 45) (1,374,302.02) 103,314.03 64,294.12 (1,008,373.42) (1,310,007.90) (23.18%)
$10.967,575.38  $10,664,161.28 $131,946.44 $75,36260  $11,099,521.82  $10,739,523.88 3.35%
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
SOUTH BOUND BROOK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

UNAUDITED
Table 2
Changes in Net Position from Operating Results
Governmental Business-Type Total School
Aclivities Activities District
FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021
Revenue:
Program Revenue:
Charges for Services $15,319.81 $1,588.79 $16,036.30 $502.66 $31,356.11 $2,181.45
Operating Grants and
Contributions 3,226,982.9% 3,352,042.36 274,851.21 195,718.75 3,501,634.20 3,547,761.11
General Revenue:
Property Taxes 6,763,749.00 6,665,101.00 6,763,745.00 6,665,101.00
Federal and State Aid
not restricted 4,466,922.00 3,873,883.00 4,466,922.00 3,873,883.00
Other 74,911.20 21,720.37 74,911.20 21,720.37
Total Revenue 14,547 ,885.00 13,914,335.52 290,687.51 198,311.41 14,838,572.51 14,110,646.93
Expenses:
Instruction 9,438,463.83 9,608,337.35 9,438,463.83 9,608,337.35
Student & Instructional

Support Services 2,146,580.20 1,708,362.59 2,146,580.20 1,708,362.59
Administrative and

Business 985,288.36 1,186,749.86 985,288.36 1,186,749.86
Maintenance &

Operations 1,086,094.85 989,438.95 1,086,094.85 980,438.95
Transportation 372,780.00 157,374.64 372,780.00 157,374.64
Other 21526367 259,378.42 234,103.67 163,885.26 449,367.34 423,263.68

Total Expenses 14,244,470.90 13,909,641.81 234,103.67 163,885.26 14,478,574.57 14,073,527.07
Increase/{Decrease) in
Net Position $303,414.10 $4,693.71 $56,583.84 $32426.15 $359,897.94 $37,119.86

Sources of Revenue

The District's total revenue for the 2021-2022 school year was $14,838,572.51 as reflected in Table 3
below. Property taxes and state formula aid accounted for 75.69 percent of the fotal revenue with the
other 24.31 percent consisting of other state and federal aid and grants, charges for services, and
miscellaneous sources,
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
SOUTH BOUND BROOK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

UNAUDITED
Table 3
Sources of Revenue
FY 2022 FY 2021
Sources of Revenue Ameunt Percentage Amount Percentage
Property Taxes $6,763,749.00 45.58% $6,665,101.00 47 23%
State Formuia Aid 4,466,922.00 30.10% 3,873,883.00 27.45%
Other State and Federal Aid 3,501,634.20 23.60% 3,647,761. 11 25.14%
Charges for Services 31,356.11 0.21% 2,181.45 0.02%
Other 74,911.20 0.50% 21,720.37 0.15%
$14,838,572.51 100.00% $14,110,646.93 100.00%

Expenses for Fiscal Years 2022 and 2021

The total expenditures for the 2021-2022 fiscal year for all programs and services were $14,478,574.57.
Table 4 below summarizes these program costs. The District's expenses are predominantly related to
instructing, providing services and transporting students, grades kindergarten through eight, which
accounts for 82.59 percent of the total District costs. Administrative and business expenses account for
the costs of the office of the superintendent of schools, the business office, and the principal’s office.
Maintenance and operations account for the costs of keeping the school buildings and grounds safe,
clean and in good operating condition, and includes all the utility costs related to the school facilities.
Other costs include interest on long-term debt, unallocated depreciation expense and the costs of the
business-type activities of the proprietary funds. It is important to note that depreciation expense on
capital assets is included in expenses for the year under the new accounting reporting model; expenses
therefore include $466,632.86 for depreciation.

Table 4 ~
Expenses for Fiscal Years 2022 and 2021
FY 2022 FY 2021

Expense Category Amount Percentage Amount Percenfage
Instruction $9,438,463.83 65.19% $9,608,337.35 68.27%
Student & Instruction Services 2,146,580.20 14.83% 1,708,362.59 12.14%
Administrative and Business 985,288.36 6.81% 1,186,749.86 8.43%
Maintenance & Operations 1,086,004.85 7.50% 0989,438.95 7.03%
Transportation 372,780.00 2.57% 157,374.64 1.12%
Other 449,367.34 3.10% 423,263.68 3.01%
$14,478,574.57 100.00% $14,073,527.07 100.00%

21



BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOQL. DISTRICT
SOUTH BOUND BROOK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED
Governmental Activities

Table 5 presents the net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid
provided for specific programs) of six major District aclivities: instruction, student and instructional
services, administration and business, maintenance and operations, transportation, and other. The net
cost shows the financial burden placed on the District's taxpayers and the state hy each of these
functions.

Table 5
Net Cost of Governmental Activities
FY 2022 Fy 2021
Expense Category Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Instruction $7,217,697.17 65.60% $7,127,081.05 67.52%
Student & Instruction Services 1,368,233.68 12.45% 1,132,042.79 10.72%
Administrative and Business 844,262.16 7.687% 1,008,722.22 9.56%
Maintenance & Operations 1,047,478.42 9.52% 939,964.95 8.90%
Transportation 308,233.00 2.80% 92,827.64 0.88%
Other 215,263.67 1.96% 255,372.00 2.42%

$11,002,168.10

100.00%

$10,556,010.66 100.00%

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of students and the interaction
between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Students and instruction related include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and
process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration, and central services include expenses associated with
administrative and financial management of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and equipment in
an effective operating condition.

Student transportation includes activities with the conveyance of special education students to and from
school, school activities and athletic events, as provided by state law.

“Other” includes unallocated depreciation.
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
SOUTH BOUND BROOK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey Statutes and is based on accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of modified accrual and encumbrance accounting.

Over the course of the year, the Board of Education approved revisions to the general fund budget as
needed. These budget amendments were necessary for the following reasons:

¢ Realign budgeted salary accounts after contract negotiation settiement and staff transfers to
various programs.

¢ Realigned appropriations in accordance with the prescribed chart of accounts as modified by the

comprehensive educational improvement and financing act.

» Transferred from unexpended appropriations to purchase teaching materials, computers, and
equipment to meet various program needs.

Capital Assets

During the fiscal year 2021-2022 the District had capital projects completed, causing a net increase of
0.98%. Table 6 reflects the comparative balances of capital assets net of depreciation. The detail of the
changes in capital assets is reflected in Note 3 to the financial statements.

Table 6

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

Land

Building and
Building
Improvements
Machinery and
Equipment

Tolal Assels

Total
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Schoof District Percentage
FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 Change
$524,414.00 $524,414.00 $524,414.00 $524,414.00
7.915,819.73 7,762,611.04 7.915,819.73 7,762,611.04 1.97%
521,695.05 605,222.84 $28,632.41 $11,068.48 550,227 46 616,291.32 {10.72%)
$8,961,828.78 $8,802,247 .88 $28,632.41 $11,068.48 $8,990,461.19 $8,903,316.36 0.98%
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
SOUTH BOUND BROOK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED
Debt Administration

At June 30, 2022, the District had $1,119,505.69 of outstanding long-term debt, consisting of
compensated absences and net pension liability. The District will continue to pay down its debt, as the
obligations are due. Table 7 reflects the comparison of outstanding debt for the past two fiscal years.
More information of the District’s long-term debt is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Table 7
Cutstanding Long-term Debt
Total School Debt Total
FY 2022 FY 2021 Percentage Change
Compensated Absences Payable $42,147.69 $50,084.00 (15.85%)
Net Pension Liability Payable 1,077,358.00 1,380,154.00 (21.94%)
Bonds Payable 295,000.00 (100.00%)
$1,119,505.69 $1,725,238.00 (35.11%)

The District’s Future

The Borough of South Bound Brook School District is in good financial condition presently. The District
is proud of its community support of the public schools. A major concern is the continued salary/benefit
cost growth of the District with the reliance on local property taxes. The District is also concerned with
the uncertain amount of NJ State Aid that may have an impact on district funding in years tc come.
However, future finances are not without challenges as enroliment fluctuates, stateffederal funding has
fluctuated up and down over the years, and taxpayer reluctance to fund education at much more than
the rate of inflation.

In conclusion, the Borough of South Bound Brook School District has committed itself to sound financial
practices. The District plans to continue to improve its fiscal management to meet the challenges of the
future as well as maintaining an up to date facility for the students of South Bound Brook. The District will
look to make more facility and technology upgrades within the new fiscal year.

Contacting the District's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the District’s finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact Dr. Lorise A. Goeke,
Superintendent, or Sally Dolan, Business Administrator/Board Secretary at the South Bound Brook Board
of Education, 122 Elizabeth Street, South Bound Brook, NJ 08880.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of
the District's operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all funds as of June 30, 2022.
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities dispiay information about the District. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall district, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.

26




BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Inventory
Restricted assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:
Land and improvemenis
Other capital assets, net
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Related to pensions
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Payroll deductions payable

Unearned revenue

Noncurrent liabilities:

Due beyond one year:

Net Pension Liabitity
Compensated absences payable
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Related to pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital asseis
Restricted for:

Capital projects fund

Special revenue fund

Other purposes
Unrestricted (deficit}

Total net position

JUNE 30, 2022

EXHIBIT "A-1"

GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

$734,615.17 $106,263.48 $840,878.65
858,835.30 20,306.49 879,141.79
1,655.84 1,655.84

2,364,665.16 2,364,665.16
524,414.00 524,414.00
8,437,414.78 28,632.41 8,466,047.19
12,918,944 .41 156,868.22 13,076,802.63
544,078.00 544,079.00
544,079.00 544 ,479.00
545,503.61 22,576.62 568,080.23
47,212.33 47,212.33
803.03 2,335.16 3,138.19
1,077,358.00 1,077,358.00
42,147.69 42,147.69
1,712,548.03 24.011.78 1,737.459.81
783,900.00 783,900.00
783,900.00 783,900.00
8,961,828.78 28,632.41 8,990,461.19
1,857, 478.05 1,857,478.05
34,567.11 34,567.11
1,223,388.89 1.223,388.89
(1,109,687 .45) 103,314.03 {1,008,373.42)
$10,967,5675.38 $131,946.44 $11,098,5621.82

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual
fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.
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EXHIBIT "B-1"

BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

SPECIAL TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS: FUND FUND FUNDS
Assets;
Cash and cash equivalents $734,615.17 $34,567.11 $769,182.28
Capital reserve account 1,857,478.05 1,857,478.05
Maintenance reserve account 472 620.00 472,620.00
Accounts receivable:
Federal 433,361.49 433,361 .49
State 425,950.44 425,950.44
Interfunds receivable 403,986.50 403,986.50
Total asseis 3,894,650.16 467,928.60 4,362 578.76
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 397,096.65 28,571.96 425,668 81
Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 47,212.33 47,212.33
Interfunds payable 403,986.50 403,986.50
Unearned revenue 803.03 803.03
Total liabilities 444,308.98 433,361.49 877,670.47
Fund balances:
Restricted for:
Capital reserve account 1,857,478.05 1,857,478.05
Maintenance reserve account 472,620.00 472,620.00
Excess surplus designated for
subsequent years expenditures 376,753.00 376,753.00
Excess surplus - current year 374,015.88 374,015.89
Student activities 34,567.11 34,567.11
Unassigned 369,474.24 369,474.24
Total fund balances 3,450,341.18 34,567.11 3,484,908,29
Total liabilities and fund balances $3,824,650.16 $467,928.60 $4,362 578.76

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT "B-1"
SHEET #2

BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Total Fund Balances {Brought Forward) $3,484,908.29

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Position (A-1} are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Cost of Assels $15,826,423.21
Accumulated Depreciation (6,864,594.43)

896182878

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, and other related
amounts that are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds,

Net pension liability (1,077,358.00)
Compensated absences payable (42,147.69)

(1,119,505.69)

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of resources are applicable
to future pericds and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Pensions:
Deferred Cutflows
Pension related 544,079.00

Deferred Inflows:
Pension related (783,900.00)

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are nof reported in the governmentat funds.
Accounts payable - pension related (1158,835.00)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $10,967,575.38

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BOROUG OUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL D iICT
STATEME EVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND IN FUND BALANCE:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

EXHIBIT "B-2"

SPECIAL CAPITAL DERT TOTAL
GENERAL REVEMUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
KREVENUES:
Local sources:
Local tax evy $6,462,849.00 $300,900.00 $6.,763,749.00
Tuition from other LEA's within the state 12,844.76 12,644.76
Miscellaneous 62,266.44 $30,040.30 92,306.74
Tolal revenues-local sources 6.,537,760.20 30,040.30 300,900.C0 6,868,700.50
Staie sources 6,307,837.01 6,307,837.01
Federal sources 989,795.49 989,795.49
Tetal revenues 12,845,567.24 1,019,835.79 300,900.00 14,166,333.00
EXPENDITURES:
Cureent expense;
Instruction:
Regular 2,498,699.41 470,153.99 2,968,853.40
Special education 620,619.59 24,964.00 654,783.59
Other instruction 291,259.29 291,258.29
Support services:
Tuition 2,736,465,39 2,736,465.39
Student and instruction retated services 1,226,713.84 484,085.07 1,710,798.91
Genesal administrative services 150,844 32 150,844.32
School administrative services 239,659.15 239,659,15
Central services 286,010.57 286,010.57
Administration information Technology 101,237.76 101,237.76
Piant operations and maintenance 779,196.12 779,186.12
Student transportation services 372,780.00 372,780,00
Employee benefits 2,944 328.18 2,944,328.18
Capital outlay 497 597.33 38,616.43 536,213,786
Capital outlay - debt assessment 32,491.00 32,491.00
Charter Schools 210,347.00 210,347.00
Debt service:
Principal 295,000.00 295,000.00
interest 5.800.00 5,900.00
Totat expendilures 12,997 ,448.95 1,017,819.49 300,800.00 14,316,168.44
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expanditures (151,851.74) 2,018.30 (149,835.44)
Fund balances, July 1, 2021 3,602,192 .92 32,550.81 3,634,743.73
Fund balances, June 30, 2022 $3,450,341.18 $34,567.11 $-0- §-0- $3,484,908.20

The accompanying notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT "B-3"

BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL, DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES jN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FLUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Totat net change in fund balances - governmental funds {from B-2) {$149,835.44)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded
capital outiays in the period.

Depreciation expense ($466,632.86)
Capital cutiays 568,704.76
Capital outlays not capitalized {32,491.00)
69,580.90

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the statements of activities, 295,000.00

In the statement of activities, interest on fong-term debt is accrued, regardless of when due.
In governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued interest is an addition in the
reconciliation, 983.33

District pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when made.
However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because
the reported net pension liability is measured a year before the District’s report date. Pension expense,
which is the change in the nel pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.

District pension contributions 106,505.00
Add: Pension benefit {26,756.00)
79,749.00

In the statement of activities, certain expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are

measured by the amounts earned during the year. in governmental funds, however, expenditures

for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned

amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation {-); when the

paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference Is an addition to the reconciliation (+). 7.936.31

Change in net position of governmental activities $303,414.10

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROQK SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable;
State
Federal
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Furniture, machinery & equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue

Total current Habilities

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

EXHIBIT "B-4"

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUND

FOOD
SERVICE

$106,263.48

419.90
19,886.59
1,655.84

128,225.81

103,758.44
(75,126.03)

28,632.41

156,858.22

22,576.62
2,335.16

24,911.78

28,632.41
103,314.03

$131,946.44

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local sources:
Daily sales-reimbursable programs:
School lunch program
Daily sales non-reimbursable programs

Total operating revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries
Employee benefits and taxes
Management fee
Supplies, materials and repairs
Bepreciation
Cost of sales - reimbursable programs
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable programs

Total operating expenses
Operating (loss)
Nonoperating revenues:
State sources:
State school lunch program
Federal sources:
National school lunch program
National school breakfast program
National food distribution commodities
P-EBT Administrative Fee
Total nonoperating revenues
Change in net position

Net position - July 1

Net position - June 30

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

PROPRIETARY FUND
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EXHIBIT "B-5"

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUND

FOOD SERVICE

$11,671.24
4,365.06

16,036.30

£6,775.06
22,744.40
14,745.00
31,140.05

1,406.07
90,842.91

6,450.19

234,103.67

(218,067.37)

5,5624.29

235,258.91
20,747.53
12,492.48

628.00

274,651.21

56,583.84

75,362.60

$131,946.44




BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Paymentis for employee benefits
Payments to suppliers

Net cash (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Stiate sources
Federal sources

Net cash (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Operaling income(loss)
Adiustments to reconcile operating income {loss)
to eash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) Decrease in inventory
increase (Decrease) in unearned revenue
Increase {Decrease) in accounts payable

Net cash (used) by operating activities

EXHIBIT "B-6"

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUND

FOOD
SERVICE

$16,512.80
(66,775.05)
(22,744.40)

(133,819.56)

(206,826.21)

5,934.42
296,5664.37

302,488.79

(18,970.00)

(18,970.00)

76,692.58

29,570.90

$106,263.48

($218,067.37)

1,406.07

(323.85)
(967.11)
11,126.05

($206,826.21)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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NOTE 1:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Borough of South Bound Brook School District
have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the Board's accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The South Bound Brook School District is a Type |l District located in Somerset
County, New Jersey. The School District is an instrumentality of the State of New
Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The District is
governed by a 7 member board elected to three-year terms and is responsible for
the fiscal control of the District. A Superintendent is appointed by the Board and
is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, are
set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
entitled “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units”
(GASB 39) as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental

Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and that meet afl of the
following criteria should be discretely presented as component units. These criteria
are;

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are
entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government.

2. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources of the
organization.

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that
the specific primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or
has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary
government.

The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the
Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include
elementary and middle schools located in the Borough of South Bound Brook.
There were no additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity
under the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the
District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation

The District's basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial
statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

District-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District. Eliminations have been made
to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish
generally between the governmental and business-type activity of the District.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental
and business-type activity of the District at fiscal year end. The statement of
activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for the business-type activity of the District and for each function of the District’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirement of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all
taxes, are presented as general revenugs. The comparison of direct expenses
with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function
or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the
District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the District segregates
transactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The fund
financial statements provide information about the District's funds. Separate
statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary - are presented.
The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New
Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance
with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that
the presentation of all funds as major is important for public interest and to promote
consistency among district financial reporting models.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the
District. 1t is used to account for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional
equipment which are classified in the capital outlay subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District
includes budgeted Capital outlay in this fund. Generally accepted
accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that
general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for
tong-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are
derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues. Resources for budgeted
capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid,
district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that
result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land, existing
buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to
or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These
resources can be transferred from and to current expense by board
resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account
for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service
or capital projects. Thus, the Special Revenue Fund is used to account for
the proceeds of specific revenue from State and Federal Governments
(other than maijor capital projects, debt service or the enterprise funds) and
local appropriations that are legally restricted or committed to expenditures
for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for
and report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to
expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities and other capital assets (other than those financed by
proprietary funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary
notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a
special election, funds appropriated from the General Fund, and from aid
provided by the state to offset the cost of approved capital projects.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for and
report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to
expenditure for principal and interest.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Fund

Enterprise Fund - The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and
expenses pertaining to cafeteria operations. The food service fund is
utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the
cost (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing
goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or
recovered primarily through user charges.

Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial
records and reported on the financial statements.

District-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: The District-Wide
financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in
the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of
revenue, the recording of unearned revenue, and in the presentation of expenses
versus expenditures. Ad Val Orem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as
under New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to its school
district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to
the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as
revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive monies under the
established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an
‘accounts receivable®”. Revenue from grants, entitiements, and donations are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using
the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and
available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transactions can be determined
and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest
on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under leases andinstaliment
purchase contracts are reported as other financing sources.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control

All governmental and business type activities and enterprise funds of the District
follow FASB Statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30,
1989, Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with
GASB pronouncements.

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to
the county office for approval. in accordance with P.L. 2011, ¢. 202, which became
effective January 17, 2012, the District elected to move the April 2013 school
Board election to the date of the November general election thereby eliminating
the vote on the annual base budget. Budgets are prepared using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is established at
line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest
(most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of
accounts referenced in N.JAC. 6A:23. All budget amendments and transfers
must be approved by School Board resolution. Budget amendments during the
year ended June 30, 2022 totaled $318,513.00, representing a reduction in state
aid revenue. The over-expenditures related to on-behalf payments in the general
fund are due to the inclusion of the non-budgeted on-behalf payments made by
the State of New Jersey as District expenditures. These amounts are offset by
related revenues and as such do not represent budgetary over-expenditures.

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information
reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted for
legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The capital
projects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to current
year expenditures, Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is
employed as a management control device during the year. For governmental
funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of
accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the
legally mandated recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes
only and the special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is
also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental
fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.

42



NOTE 1:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, confracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of
the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other
than the special revenue fund are reported as assigned fund balances at fiscal
year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather
commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received
advances are reflected in the balance sheet as unearned revenues at fiscal year
end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

Interfunds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particular
funds and are considered short term in duration. The Interfund transactions are
recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the fransactions are executed
and are part of the district’s available spendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmenta!
funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year end balances
are not reported in the financial statements.

Inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost on
a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of Food Distribution Commodities, at stated
value which approximates market.

Prepaid expenses which benefit future period, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as an expenditure in the year of purchase.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include 1and, buildings and
improvements and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district- wide
financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets with
an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of ohe
year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reporied at cost. Donated
capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date received, The cost
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated in the district-wide statements using the straight-
line method over the foliowing estimated useful lives;

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
School Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Electrical/Plumbing 30
Vehicles 8
Office & Computer Equipment 5-10
Instructional Eqguipment 10
Grounds Equipment 15

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Compensated Absences (Continued)

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are
paid for accrued vacation. The District's policy permits employees to accumulate
unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount fo subsequent years. Upon
retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the District's agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination
payment method, whereby the liabiiity is calculated based on the amount of sick
leave that is expected to become eligible for payment upon termination. The
District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability based on the
accumulated sick and vacation days at the balance sheet date by those employees
who are currently eligible to receive termination payments.

For the District-wide statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be
used in the following year. In accordance with GAAP, for the governmental funds,
in the fund financial statements, all of the compensated absences are considered
long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a reconciling item
between the fund level and District-wide presentations.

Fund Equity

Fund balance restrictions are used to indicate that portion of the fund balance that
is not available for expenditures or is legally segregated for a specific future use.
Designation of portions of the fund balances are established to indicate tentative
plans for financial utilization in a future period. The unreserved fund balances
represent the amount available for future budgetary operations.

Unassigned net position represents the remains of the District's equity in the
cumulative earnings of the proprietary funds.

Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue in the special revenue fund represents funds which have been
received but not yet earned. A corresponding accounts receivable has also been

established for any open encumbrances at year end which is allowable under
generally accepted accounting principles.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accrued lLiabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
District-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year.
Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.

Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net
investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported
as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The District's
policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available.

Fund Balance

Under GASB 54, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the
following classifications of fund balance:

Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation. The
District reports the Capital Reserve, Maintenance Reserve, Student Activities and
Excess Surplus as Restricted Fund Balance.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance (Continued)

Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the District's highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resoiutions approved by
the Board of Education.

Assigned — includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific purpose,
but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Under the
District’'s policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business Administrator. The
District reports Year End Encumbrances as Assigned Fund Balance.

Unassigned -is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the generai
fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned
fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for
specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to
those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund
balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and
finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of the fiscal
year end.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions {Continued}

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, income taxes, grants,
entitiements, and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from income
taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is earned. Revenue from
grants, entiflements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required o be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the
District must provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a
reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from nonexchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered
both measurable and available at fiscal year end: property taxes available as an
advance, interest, and tuition.

Proprietary Fund Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing
services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the School District enterprise funds are charges to
customers for sales of food service. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expense and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer’s share of social security,
workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were aliocated based on
salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically
identified by function and is included in the indirect expense column of the
Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed to a
specific function is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on
the Statement of Activities.
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NOTE 1:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Extraordinary and Special items

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
controf of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal year.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires

~ management to make assumptions that affect the amounts reported as revenue

and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. These estimates may
differ from actual resuls.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

in the district-wide financial statements for purposes of measuring the net pension
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the District's proportionate share of the New Jersey Public Employees Retirement
System (“PERS”) and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund ("TPAF") and the
additions to/deductions from these retirement systems’ fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they were reported by PERS and TPAF.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms,
investments are reported at fair value.

In the governmental fund financial statements, the year end net pension liability is
not required to be reflected. Pension related revenues and expenditures are
reflected based on amounts that are normally expected to be liquidated with
available financial resources for required pension contributions. Expenditures for
PERS are recognized based upon billings made by the State of New Jersey due
April 1%t of each fiscal year. TPAF contributions are paid on the District's behalf by
the State of New Jersey. The governmental fund financial statements reflect both
a revenue and expense for this pension contribution.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

in addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred oufflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has
only one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related
{o pensions.
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Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Qutflows/inflows of Resources (Continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has one item that qualifies in
this category, deferred amounts related to pensions.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Beginning with the year ended June 30, 2022, the District has implemented GASE
Statement 87, Leases. GASB Statement 87 establishes criteria for accounting and
financial reporting for leases. It creates a single model for lease accounting and
requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that were
previously classified as operating leases. A Lessee is required o recognize a lease
liability and an intangible right to use asset, and a lessor is required to recognize
a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources.
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Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, deposits in the
government money market account, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less as cash and cash equivalents. Invesiments are
stated at cost, which approximates market.

Deposiis

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories which
are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank that accepts public
funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined as a state bank, a
national bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State of New Jersey, the
deposits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The
statutes also require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of publiic
funds that exceed certain insurance limits. All collateral must be deposited with
the Federal Reserve Bank or a Banking Institution that is a member of the Federal
Reserve System, and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.00. Under
(GUDPA), if a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the
collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the
deposits to the governmental unit.

The Borough of South Bound Brook School District had the following cash and
cash equivalents at June 30, 2022:

Cash in Reconciled
Bank Additions Reductions Balance
Governmental Funds ~ $3,004,855.02 $596,941.77 $502,516.46 $3,099,280.33
Proprietary Fund 212,786.31 59,310.50 153,475.81

$3,217,641.33 $596,941.77 $661,826.96 $3,252,766.14
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Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits {Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event
of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned. The District does not have a
specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies that adhere
to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2022, based upon the coverage
provided by FDIC and NJ GUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was exposed
to custodial credit risk. Of the cash on balance in the bank, $250,000.00 was
covered by Federal Depository Insurance and $2,967,641.33 was covered under
the provisions of NJ GUDPA.

Investments

The purchase of investiments by the Board is strictly limited by the express
authority of the N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 Education, Administration of School Disfricts.
Permitted investments inciude any of the following type of securities:

1. Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;

2. Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment frust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the “Investment Company Act
of 1940, 15 U.S.C. 80a-1 et seq., and operated in accordance with 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and which portfolio is limited to U.S. Government
securities that meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized by
such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be made
pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. These funds are
also required to be rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

3. Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued
in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date
not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase, provided that such
obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other
external factor.

4. Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the school
district is located.

5. Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days

from date of purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by School Districts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments (Continued)

6. Local government investment pools that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security pursuant
to 17 C.F.R. § 270a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized
by such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be
made pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. This type
of investment is also required to be rated in the highest category by a
nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

7. Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, ¢.281 (C. 52:18A-80.4); or

8. Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if:

a. the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and (3} of this subsection;

b. the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;
¢. the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

d. the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as
defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C. 17:18-41); and,;

e. a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and security
of collateral is executed.

As of June 30, 2022, the District had no investments outstanding. Based upon the
limitations set forth by New Jersey Statutes 40A:5-15.1 and existing investment
practices, the District is generally not exposed to credit risks and interest rate risks
for its investments, nor is it exposed to foreign currency risk for its deposits and
investments.
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June 30, 2022

NOTE 3:

CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets that are not depreciated:
Land and Improvements $524,414.00 $524,414.00
Total capital assets not depreciated 524,414.00 524,414.00
Capital assets being depreciated.
Site Improvements 42 529 65 42,529 65
Building and building improvements 13,256,181.93 $536,213.76 13,792,395.69
Machinery and equipment 1,467,083.87 1,467,083.87
Total capital assets being depreciated  14,765,795.45 536,213.76 15,302,009.21
Total gross assels 15,290,209.45 536,213.76 15,826,423.21
Less: accumulated depreciation for:
Site Improvements {42,529.65) {42,529.65)
Building and building improvements (5,493,570.89) (383,005.07) {5,876,575.96)
Machinery and equipment {861,861.03) (83,627.79) {945 488.82)
(6,397,961.57) {466,632.86) (6,864,594.43)
Governmental activities capital assets, net  $8,892,247.88 $69,580.90 $8,961,828.78
Business type activities: .
Machinery and equipment $84,788.44 $18,970.00 $103,758.44
Less: accumulated depreciation (73,719.96) (1,406.07) {75,126.03)
Business type activities
capital assets, net $11,068.48 $17,5663.93 -Q- $28,632.41

Depreciation Expense was charged to governmental expenses as follows:

Instruction:
Regular $135,070.13
Support Services:
Student and instruction related services 20,411.46
General Administration 434.00
Plant operations and maintenance 310,717.27
$466,632.86
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NOTE 4:

Balance, July 1, 2021
Reductions

Balance, June 30, 2022

Amounts Due
Within One Year

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to the provisions of Title 18A, Education,
of the New Jersey Statutes and are required to be approved by the voters of the
municipality through referendum. The proceeds of bonds are recorded in the
Capital Projects Fund and are restricted to the use for which they were approved
in the bond referendum. All bonds are retired in annual instaliments within the
statutory period of usefuiness.

School Bonds issued by the District are entitled to and benefit from the provision
of the New Jersey School Board Reserve Act P.L. 1980 ¢.72. Basically, funds are
held by the State of New Jersey within its State Fund for the Support of Free Public
Schools as a school bond reserve pledged by law to secure payment of principal
and interest due on such bonds in the event of the inability of the issuer to make
payments.

At June 30, 2022, the District had no bonds or notes authorized but not issued.

The following is a summary of changes in liabilities that effect other long-term
obligations for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Bonds Compensated Net Pension
Payable Absences Payable Liability Total
$295,000.00 $50,084.00 $1,380,154.00 $1,725,238.00
295,000.00 7,936.31 302,796.00 605,732.31
$0.00 $42,147.69 $1,077,358.00 $1,119,505.69
$0.00 $0.00
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Under New Jersey Statutes the District may incur debt in an amount not to exceed
3% of the averaged equalized valuation basis of real property. For the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2021, the District borrowing capacity under N.J.S. 18A:24-
19 would be as foliows:

Equalized Valuation

Year of Real Property
2021 $401,261,459.00
2020 381,081,991.00
2019 375,312,001.00
$1,157,655,451.00
Average equalized valuation of property $385,885,150.33
School borrowing margin
(3% of average equalized valuation of property) 11,576,554.51
Net bonded school debt as of December 31, 2021 0.00
School borrowing power available $11,576,554.51
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Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by either
the Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity
Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered by the
New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division}. According to the State of
New Jersey Administrative Code, ail obligations of both Systems wili be assumed
by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a
publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System
and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained by
writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey,
08625.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers' Pension and
Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits {o certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer coniributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or
members of the professional staff ceriified by the State Board of Examiners, and
employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified,
professional and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provision of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement System
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or other
state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Confribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L.. 2007 to provide coverage to elected and certain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Significant Legislation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, ¢. 78 enacted certain changes in the operations
and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.

Pension Plan Design Changes

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, ¢. 78, new members of TPAF and PERS, hired
on or after June 28, 2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have
attained the age of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a reduction
of 1/4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65. New members will
be eligible for a service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

Under the new legislation, the methodology for calculating the unfunded accrued
liability payment portion of the employer's annual pension contribution to the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30 year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation (July 1, 2019 for PFRS),
the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the remaining period
reaches 20, when the amortization period will revert to an open-ended 20 year
period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS
are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S5.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits
vest after ten years of service, except for post-retirement healthcare benefits that
vest after 25 years of service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years
of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Contribution Requirements - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A
and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing
employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State
of New Jersey legislation.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing
employer of TPAF (i.e. the State of New Jersey makes the employer contribution
on behalf of public school districts.

PERS Contribution Requirements

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Funding Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
6/30/2022 $106,505.00 100% $106,505.00
6/30/2021 $92,585.00 100% $92,585.00
6/30/2020 $90,003.00 100% $90,003.00

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020, the State of New
Jersey contributed $1,233,425.00, $884,115.00 and $686,864.00, respectively to
the TPAF pension system on behalf of the District.

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66, during the years ended June 30
2022, 2021 and 2020, the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District
$253,872.01, $242,736.47 and $230,347.02, respectively for the employer’s share
of social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base
salaries.
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NOTE6:  ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2022, the District reported a liability of $1,077,358.00 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2620,
which was rolled forward to June 30, 2021. The District's proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the District's
proportion was 0.0090943151 percent, which was an increase of 0.0006309450
percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized pension benefit of
$26,757.00 in the district-wide financial statements. This pension benefit was
based on the pension plans June 30, 2021 measurement date.

At June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience $ 16,991.00 $ 7,713.00
Changes of assumptions 383,546.00
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments 5,611.00 283,804.00
Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 401,642.00 108,837.00
District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 119,835.00

$ 54407900 $  783,900.00

The $119,835.00 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resuiting from school district contributions subsequent to the measurement date
(i.e., for the school year ending June 30, 2022, the plan measurement date is June
30, 2021) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2023.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Pubiic Employees Retirement System {PERS) (Continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
Juhe 30, Amount
2022 ($195,649.00)
2023 (122,944.00)
2024 (65,194.00)
2025 (34,466.00)
2026 58,597.00

($359,656.00)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2021 measurement date was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020, which rolled forward to June 30, 2021.
These actuarial valuations used the following assumptions:

Inflation rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 2.00%-6.00%
Based on Years of Service
Thereafter 3.00%-7.00%

Based on Years of Service

Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median
Income Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010
on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-
2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4%
adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability
retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-
Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and
117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-
2020,
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
{(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the peried July 1, 2014 to June 30,
2018.

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-ferm expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2021) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investment and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the farget asset
allocation percentage and by adding expecied inflation. Best estimates of
arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS’s target
asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 8.09%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.71%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.96%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.30%
Real Estate Assets 3.00% 9.15%
Real Estate 8.00% 7.40%
High Yield 2.00% 3.75%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.60%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 1.68%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 0.95%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.35%
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NOTE 6: ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June
30, 2021. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers and the nonemployer
contributing entity will be based on 100% of the actuarially determined
contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially determined
contributions for the local employers.

Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current pian members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied
to all projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well
as what the collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1- percentage-point higher than
the current rate:

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
District's proportionate share
of the pension liability $1,467,143.00 $1,077,358.00 $746,570.00

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295 by

visiting http.//www state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required fo be
funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local
participating employers are considered to be in a special funding situation as defined
by GASB Statement No, 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing
entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the plan
(except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or
deferred outfiows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
participating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing
entities' total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the
locai participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District
recognized at June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Net Pension Liability:

Districts proportionate share -0-
State's proportionate share
associated with the District $14,348,863
$14,348 863

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2020 which was rolied forward to June 30, 2021. The net
pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the District's
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating schooi districts and the State, actuarially determined.
At June 30, 2021, the proportion of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the
District was .0298467124% which was a decrease of .0009171555 percent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense
and revenue of $337,635.00 in the government-wide financial statements for
contributions provided by the State. This pension expense and revenue was based on
the pension plans June 30, 2021 measurement date.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2021 measurement date was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020, which was rolled forward to June 30,
2021, This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.56%-4.45%
Based on Years of Service
Thereafter 2.75%-5.65%

Based on Years of Service

Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Mortality Rate

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-
Median Income Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and
85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of
2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the
Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a
114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality
table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3% adjustment for females, and
with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30,
2018.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2021) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
{expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class inciuded
in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Aliocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 8.09%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.71%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.96%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.30%
Real Estate Assets 3.00% 9.15%
Real Estate 8.00% 7.40%
High Yield 2.00% 3.75%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.60%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 1.68%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 0.95%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.35%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June
30, 2021. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be based on 100% of
the actuarially determined contributions for the State. Based on those
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all projected
benefit payments in determining the total pension liability.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) {Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero,
consideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the
District.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Teachers Public
and Annuity Fund (TPAF). The report may be obtained at State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 285 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295

by visiting http.//www state. nj.us/treasury/pensions

67



NOTE 7:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes fo the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan, with that is administered on a pay-as-you-go
basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The State Health
Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription
drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are
legally required to be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with
N.J.S. A 52:14-17.32f. Therefore, these local paricipating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No.
75 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. According to
N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage fo employees
who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years or more of
service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of the following
plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen Retirement System (PFRS),
or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L, 2011, future
retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years
of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the
cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more
years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the
retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree's annual
retirement benefit and level of coverage.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan Membership
covered by the benefit terms consisted of the following:

Active Plan Members 213,801
Inactive Plan Members or Benegficiaries

Currently Receiving Benefits 150,427
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries

Not Yet Receiving Benefits -0-
Total Plan Members 4,328
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Total Nonempliover OPEB Liability

The portion of the total Non-Employer OPEB Liability that was associated with the
District at June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Total OPEB Liability:

District's Proportionate Share $-0-
State's Proportionate Share associated
with the District 17,761,814
$17,761,814

The total Non-Employer OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2021 was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2021.

The Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability was determined separately based on
actual data of the District.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized on-behalf post-
employment expense and revenue of $1,028,493.00 in the government-wide
financial statements for contributions provided by the State. This expense and
revenue was based on the plans June 30, 2021 measurement date.

At June 30, 2021, the District's proportion was 0.0295992490 percent, which was
a decrease of .0017951674 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal
obligation to make employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS,
TPAF/ABP and PFRS participants. The District’s proportionate share percentage
determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 75 is zero
percent. Consequently, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective
Non-Employer OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total Non-Employer OPERB liability that was associated with the District as of
June 30, 2021 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, which
was rolled forward to June 30, 2021.The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan
member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial
valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the
measurement:

June 30, 2021

TPAF/ABP PERS PFRS
Infiation — 2.5%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 1.55-4.45%* 2.00-8.00%* 3.25-15.25%*
Thereafter 2.75-5.65%" 3.00-7.00%*  Not Applicable

*- Based on Years of Service

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers"
(TPAF/ABP)," General' (PERS), and "Safety" (PFRS) classification headcount-
weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections
from the central year using Scale MP-2021. Postretirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-weighted mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using Scale MP-2021. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010
"General" classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2021 for current disables retirees. Future disahled retirees was based on the
Pub-2010 "Safety" (PFRS), "General" (PERS), and "Teachers" (TPAF/ABP)
classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the
results of actuarial experience studies for the periods July 1, 2015— June 30,
2018, July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2018, and July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018 for TPAF,
PERS and PFRS, respectively.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the frend rate is initially 5.65% and decreases
to a 4.50% long-term trend rate after seven years. For post-65 medical benefits,
the actual fully insured Medicare Advantage trend rates for fiscal year 2022
through 2023 are reflected. For PPO the trend is initially 5.74% in fiscal year 2024,
increasing to 12.93% in fiscal year 2025 and decreases to 4.50% after 11 years.
For HMO the trend is initially 6.01% in fiscal year 2024, increasing to 15.23% in
fiscal year 2025 and decreases to 4.5% after 11 years. For prescription drug
benefits, the initial trend rate is 6.756% and decreases to a 4.50% long-term trend
rate after seven years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is
5.00%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 was 2.16% and 2.21%
respectively. This represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the
Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond
rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount
rate is set at the municipal bond rate.
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NOTE T: ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Total Non-Empiloyer OPEB Liability

Shown below are details regarding The Total OPEB non-employer Liability
associated with the District for the measurement period from June 30, 2020 to June

30, 2021.
Balance at 6/30/20 $21,288,542
Changes for the year:
Service cost $979,795
Interest 460,760
Changes of Benefit Terms (18,905)
Differences between expected
and actual experience (4,614,730)
Changes in assumptions or
other inputs 17,523
Membership Contributions 11,779
Benefit payments - Net (362,950)
Net changes (3,526,728)
Balance at 6/30/21 $17,761.814

Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above
as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was calculated
using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher
than the current rate:

June 30, 2021

1.00% At Discount 1.00%
Decrease (1.16%) Rate (2.16%) Increase (3.16%)
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Empioyer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $21,275,865 $17,761,814 $14,994,710
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NOTE7:  ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employver OPEB Liability to Changes in
Healthcare Trends

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the healthcare trend rate as disclosed
above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was
calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1- percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2021

1.00% Healthcare Cost 1.00%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $14,378,246 $17,761,814 $22,305,696

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability

At June 30, 2021, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to retired school employee’s Non-Employer OPEB
Liability associated with the District from the foliowing sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience 3 2677515 % 5,330,636
Changes of assumptions 3,013,066 1,905,677
Changes in proportion 703,466 1,170,182
$ 6,394,047 % 8,406,495
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability

(Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the State's proportionate share of the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated with the District will be recognized in OPEB expense as
follows:

Measurement
Period Ended
June 30, Amount
2022 ($443,296)
2023 ($443,296)
2024 ($443,296)
2025 ($443,296)
2026 ($342,155)
Total Thereafter $102,892

($2,012,448)

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the District’s proportionate share of school
retirees OPEB is zero. There is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate
share of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in the
financial statements.

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employee Plan Information

The New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits issues publicly available reports
on the OPEB plan. Those reports may be obtained by writing to the Division of
Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295 or on their website
at:

hitp://iwvww. state nj. us/treasury/pensions/gasb-notices-opeb.shtmi
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NOTE 10:
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LITIGATION

The Board attorney's letter advises that there is no litigation, pending litigation,
claims, contingent liabilities, unasserted claims or assessments or statutory
violations which involve the Board of Education and which might materially affect
the Board’s financia! position.

CONTINGENCIES

The District receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the
U.S. Government in the form of grants. Entitlement to the funds is generally
conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible
purposes. The State and Federal grants received and expended in the 2021-2022
fiscal year were subject to the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08 which mandates that grant revenues and expenditures be audited in
conjunction with the District's annual audit if expenditures for federal or state
programs exceed $750,000. Findings and questioned costs, if any, relative to
federal and state financial assistance programs are discussed in the Single Audit
Section, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. In addition, all grants and
cost reimbursements are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors. The District’s management does not believe any such audit would result
in material amounts of disallowed costs.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural
disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance

coverage for property, liability, and student accident and surety bonds, A complete
schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section of this
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation insurance - The District has elected to

fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the
“Contributory Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to pay contributions
(tax) to the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund based on a contribution rate
and taxable wage base paid to each employee each calendar year. The District is
billed for amounts due to the State.
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NOTE 11:  INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that short-term loans were
disbursed and payments between funds were made. The following interfund
balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2022:

interfund interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $403,986.50
Special Revenue Fund $403,886.50
$403,986.50 $403,986.50

NOTE 12: CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS- BUDGETARY BASIS

in accordance with N.J.S. A 18A.7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004,¢.73 (S1701), the
Restricted Fund Balance - Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the
New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996
(CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to restrict General Fund fund
balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required
minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget.
Based on this calculation, the South Bound Brook School District has $374,015.88
excess fund balance resulting from the year ended June 30, 2022.

General Fund Expenditures

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 $12,997 448.95
Less:

On-behalf TPAF Pension and Social Security Reimbursement 1,776,368.01
Adjusted General Fund Expenditures 11,221,080.94
Excess Surplus Percentage 4.00%
4% of Adjusted 2021-22 General Fund Expenditures 448,843.24
Greater of line above of $250,000.00 448 843.24
Add: Allowable Adjustments 333,496.00
Maximum Unreserved/Unassigned Fund Balance 782,339.24
Actual Unreserved/tnassigned Fund Balance 1,156,356.13
Excess Surplus $374,015.89
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NOTE 14:

NOTE 15:
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June 30, 2022

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund (Exhibit B-1)— Of the $3,450,341.18 General Fund fund balance at
June 30, 2022, $1,857,478.05 is restricted in the capital reserve account,
$472,620.00 is restricted in the maintenance reserve account; $750,768.89 is
restricted as excess surplus in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, of which
$376,753.00 has been appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for
the year ending June 30, 2023; $369,474.24 is unassigned.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a choice of the deferred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457. The
plans permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Since the District does not have
any property or rights to the plan assets and no fiduciary relationship exists
between the District and the deferred compensation plan, the plan assets are not
included in the District's financial statements as of June 30, 2022.

MAINTENANCE RESERVE

A maintenance reserve was established through a board resolution by the Borough
of South Bound Brook School District in the amount of $250,000.00 in the 2010-
2011 school year for the accumulation of funds for the required maintenance of a
facility in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-9 as amended by P.L. 2004, ¢c. 73
(S1701). N.J.S.A. 18A77G-31(c), 18A:7G-13 and N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.2 permits
districts, by board resolution, to transfer undesignated general fund balance to the
maintenance reserve account if approved in the district's original budget certified
for taxes or if the district received voter approval by a separate proposal at budget
time or by special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant
to N.J.S.A19:60-2. N.JS.A 18A:7F-41(a), 18A:7F-41(b} and N.J.A.C.6A:23A-
14.3 permit a district board of education to transfer by board resolution {prior to
June 30) any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation
amounts to the maintenance reserve for withdrawal in subsequent school years.

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the year ending June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2021 $472.620.00
Ending balance, June 30, 2022 $472,620.00
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June 30, 2022

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Borough of South Bound Board
of Education by the inclusion of $100,000.00 in the 2000-2001 school year for the
accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal
years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity
is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in
the district's approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the
LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve
as per N.JSA 18A7G-31{c), 18A:7G-13 and N.JAC. B6A23A-14.1,by
appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes. A district
may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters
has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special
question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-
2. N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-41(a), 18A:7F-41(b) and N.J.A.C.6A:23A-14.3 permit a district
board of education to transfer by board resolution (prior to June 30) any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts to the
capital reserve for withdrawal in subsequent school years. Pursuant to N.J.A.C.
8:23A-5.1(d) 7, the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local
costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the year ending June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2021 $1,980,675.21
Add: Transfer from Fund Balance - Unassigned 350,000.00
Add: Unappropriated Funds 40,315.84
Less: Withdrawals - Adopted Budget (205,000.00)
Less: Withdrawals - Board Resolution dated 5/11/22 (318,5613.00)
Ending balance, June 30, 2022 $1,857,478.05
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NOTE 18:

NOTE 19:

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

TAX ABATEMENTS

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax
abatement is an agreement between a government and an individual or entity in
which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity
promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic
development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. School districts
are not authorized by New Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement agreements.
However, the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may
have entered into tax abatement agreements, and that potential must be disclosed
in these financial statements. If the county of municipality entered into tax
abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly affect the school
district's 1ocal tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require
that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and
remitted to the school district.

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has
elected to raise their minimum tax levy using the required local share provisions at
N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-5(b), the loss of revenue resulting from the municipality or county
having entered into a tax abatement agreement is indeterminate due to the
complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the New
Jersey Department of Education based upon district property value and weaith.

INVENTORY

inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2022 consisted of the following:

Food and Supplies $1,655.84

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required
by the Single Audit Act of 1996) is the difference between market value and cost
of the commodities at the date of purchase and has been included as an item of
non-operating revenue in the financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Education has evaluated subsequent evenis occurring after the
financial statement date through February 21, 2023 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Based upon this evaluation, the District
has determined that no subsequent events needed to be disclosed.
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Sources/infiows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary} "revenues” from the
budgetary comparison schedules

Difference - budget to GAAP

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized as
expenditures, and related revenue is recognized.

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary
purposes.

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year.

Total revenues as reportaed on the statement of

revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
- governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts {budgetary basis) "otal outflows” from the

budgetary comparison schedules

Difference - budget fo GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment erdered
but not received are reported in the year the order is

placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the
supplies are received for financial purposes

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
- governmental funds.
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EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL
GENERAL REVENUE
FUND FUND

$12,888,757.21 $925,049.61

94,786.18

369,705.00
(412,885.00)

$12,845,507.21 $1,019,835.79

$12,997,448.95

$923,033.31

94,786.18

$12,997,448.95

$1,017,810.49




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART il
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION {GASBE 68)
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EXHIBIT "L-4"

BOROUGH OF SQUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART ill
FOR THE FiSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

Change in benefit terms:
None

Change in assumptions:

The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
liability in their respective accounting periods:

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experience
June 30, Rate Refturn Study Period
2021 7.00% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2020 7.00% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2019 6.28% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2018 5.66% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2017 5.00% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/3014
2018 3.98% 7.85% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2015 4.90% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2014 5.39% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2013 5.55% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11

TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

Change in benefit terms:
None

Change in assumptions:

The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
liability in thelr respective accounting periods:

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experience
June 30, Rate Return Study Period
2021 5.40% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2020 5.40% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2019 5.60% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2018 4.86% 7.00% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2017 4.25% 7.00% 07/01112-086/30/15
2016 3.22% 7.65% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2015 4.13% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
2014 4.68% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
2013 4.95% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART IV
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SCHEDULE RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS (GASB 75)
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EXHIBIT "M-2"

BOROQUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART IV
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Change in benefit terms: None

Change in assumptions:
The following assumptions were used in calculating the net OPEB liability

in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending Discount
June 30, Rate
2021 2.16%
2020 221%
2019 3.50%
2018 3.87%
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt
service or capital projects.
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LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the long-term
liabilities of the District. This includes obligations under Serial Bonds, installment purchase
contracts and Capital leases.

106




00°000'662% 00°000'66Z$
00°'000°662$ 00°000'S62$ 00°000'692'Z$
¢c0c 0t INNF a3yl 3y L€0¢ 0L ANNT Jivy LNMOWY 31va ANSSI
JONVivd JONVIvd 1SFHILINI SAILHNLIYW TVYNNNY 40 INNOIWY

ab-hi LIGIHXH

¢c0c 0€ INNF
SANOE VIH3S 40 IMNAIHIS
1830 WH3L-ONOT
12141813 TOOHDS MO0HE ANNCH HLNOS 40 HONOHOd

OL/LOMICL spucd

Buipuniay |ooyag

ANSSi 4NSS!
40 31va

107



0% 0-$ 0% 0§
00°006°00¢ 00°006°00¢ 00°006'00¢
00'000'66¢ 00°000'662 00000662
00°006°S 00°006'S 00'006'S
00°'006'00¢ 00°006'00¢ 00°006'00¢
00'006°00€$ 00°006'00€% 00°006'00€$
FONVIIVA YNLOV 139dN4d TvNid 139ang

«Ela LIBIHXE

z0g

€¢0¢ Ot INNI d3ANT dV3A TvOSId dHL H04

0¢ sunf ‘aoueeq puny
L Ajinp 'sougjeq pun4

sainjipuadxa (Jopun) Jano
sanuaasal jo (Aousioyap) $s90x3

sasnyipuadxa-aoiales Jqep Jejnbal je1o ).

jediound jo uonduiapey
jsaisly)
‘@o1nes 1gap Jeinbay
STUNLIANIIX3

SaNUBAS. [BJ0 |

Anai Xe) {2007
:$80IN08 18007

SANNDATY

TVNLIOV ANY 139dN4d - IONVYIVE ANNd NE STONVHD ANV

STUNLIAGNTdXT 'SANNIAZY 4O SININLLVLS
aNNd 30IAGES 1830

1OIFLSIA TOOHOS MO0Hd ANNOg HINOS 40 HONOWOd

108



STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)




BORQUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

Contents Page
Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the district's financial performance and well being have changed over time. J-1to0 J-4

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-5 o J-8

Debt Capacity:
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue
additional debt in the future, J-10 to J-13

Demographic and Economic information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities take place. J-14to J-15

Operating Information:
These schedules contfain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these scheduies is derived from the annual comprehensive
financial reports (ACFR) for the relevant year.



1V 8InpaYoy Y30V 8dinog

AEGIEE0. /3 62G80'GEE'SE CSER0'vOZ'[S @LbIG68/'98 62 /CL0E6'BS  _PL'9Z0'68.0LS  EO'LGOEBCLIS  _CPLOR'E99'0LS  BREZSBELOLE 2aLeS'660' L1 uomsed 18U UISIP [B10L
(L' 259'6p) {99°Z6'16) 5o 1811621} (ISer0eezs) (2920L:228) (LG0ZL e 3) (Lo'pes’2er L) (zg'9z'vog'L) (06'200°0LE"1) (Zy'tie 900'L) (noysp) pajouisalun
Z0'9.9'¥59'2 B6'1E6'968'7  ELBILLLL'E  PE'BISLIME LTS 16V 56226'VLT'S 0L09L'Po8'y LY 0OY'E00 Y ZPGLZ LvP'E SOPEF'GLLE pelLsey
99°'L6Z'880'S 95'9p9'9BS's L6GLiPheS 18°860'06%'9 09°LL8'P0L'S 0L'92y'906'e PEY16'489'L PO'695'¥2T'S §£°91£'809'8 61181 066'8 sjasse (eYdey 1 Juawisany| 18N

opIM-IISIq

PO PLE 19 B1'BlE YL 06'€59°E9 LYy086°48 Ly ive'og 86°G85'C/ ¥4 '599'99 YA 09'788'5) Yrave' el uensod jeu samoe ad)-ssauisng 210 L
SLEER'El ¥Z'zee’ls al6llca 170868 1v' P890 [Tty 26'EP5'ES 0t 1¥8'08 R A £OPLEE0) PABLISAIIA
68°08%'LL ¥6'S6Y'T 1 yLYSP [T zeLzL'el S1°680'21 8b'g00'LL VWEe9'sz Slasse ENdes Ul JUBUASIALL 18N

safmoe adfii-ssautsng

£L566'L¥9L LA L' 128 GOy 0012 14°265°10.°9 Pg628'E92'6 9L280'¥LL 0L 8§7°GE0LE0 L) 96'796'029'0L 82 L9l'¥00'0L 9€'6LG 2060 uonisod jeu salAoe EIUSUILEBA0E 10
(90" 16¥'e8) {08'v1LL'651) TLLOvEPie D (pOPZ00LE L) (€206G8EC’t)  O089L'G6E £) (66225 16% L) (Z6'696'v65'L) (z0'zoe'vee’t) (ey'L89'601'L) {Iaya@) petousaiun
20049'v99'2 B6°1E6'068'Z  ELGILLLL'E  $6'8IS'IZPE LT895' 261" GeTZE'PLE'S 0409L'798'y L¥096'E00'y ZrSLZ IvY'e SOYER'GLL'S pelausey
10°018'040'68  ZUOGL'YBS'ES €T LOUCYY'SS LB'SEO'065'9S OB LIS'V0L'96 L9 LLZ'VE8'9S 26'76E'759' LS st'eivZIz'es 89'4¥2° 16585 $4°928'196'0% 51953. [ENdeo Ul Juswisaaul 13N

SBIIANDE [BILBULILLBAOR)

(074 vioe Gi0¢ 910z Tioe qioz 8102 474 Teoe ZZoe

GITIANYNG

wb T LIBIHXE

109



129'60z 125 85 (e62..0808%) _ [5zoveoe06s) (2580r00583) (60760 15/ 657 (z1'651'6v6'29) (15600 565 68) ([G6'yS6'Z08'0k8) (Lo ¥ES€260L8) (92 PRG SYe0Ls)
65007 Y5 EQ0'EL levZits) 99'E9E Pe oL i6v2t) LEELE rz'0E6'9) TezeeLcer G 9%y et RS
6z zoT'8L5'8) (r9Ll'865'e) (Z9'859'550'6) (8£°229'0e5'9) {(50°009'869'8) (ec'zLT'Gpa'e) (29'6L1'845'6) (89-522'8L2'01) {ggroL0'gas'oL) (o189l 'Z00'LL)
A— r— e
£EB08'822'L LOLET L0 IG06Y'LO5'L S0BS00LLE PLEELLEZ 7LEFG0CE £ PTLLENELT 192822812 96 ErE 8PS T 1E0B6ZEE T
05'£96'68) S5'reb 602 05°£0E O2c 08'889°9LC £CTIELLZ VEEEL'LEE 8e'isriie g9'iza'9sl L LLe'98L 16" /89' 062
PEEES FLL ERIEEED SEOELPPL 1920r8EL L7958 0EL £1°896 56t 6F0EZZEL L 068801 $L8LIG6L V21598
98498'¢L €69 SETLYGL £L'e8r'es S0'900°L8 [FA= ] 68'022'98 YT LEG'EE 98'265 0E'9£0'9L
£9PPR'BED L 9v 208295 I0IPE L L GCEDLESD 2 19150004 Ce'SLPBE0E 93'6aLP05'2 208y 20T SLLEYCEE'E 08'20E Cre ®
EHYPRRE0’L 9208’98 LOLPE el SZ'BOLEG0T 19140002 0e'9LPEE0C 9B GHL POS T Z0°L85'020'2 9E'Zr0'eseE 66'286'922'E
8.085'L LRSS
SLEl00sLs Y6 B666'299'G Z8'982'81L0'LL W BB1L5'Z29' kL 9Z'80L GO% ¢+ 199’9082 AT A 10728800 ISpiseir'yl
£0' L6 L6L L0120 GBL £6'08¢ 122 6 b29' 263 €2 098 £EL €L 640 E2E 79188922 6 D5G 6L ST '589'€al 29'€0LvEe
£0'LI6'L6L L0 LZrEEL £608E 122 v6 ¥29 261 £7°099'€22 EL6larze 79198922 6055 06+ 9z SEAEoL L9E0LPEE
21 LP0'BS5'S £68.8J80E 65615'964ChL £9 16/ £66 0L S5 S9BEE L ELE80PFOEL By Ghe 080 Ch 99'889'65. 21 LR LPIEOSEL 06 O PYZ Pl
£F 807 76 00°529°68 00°62L°28 00608 5L 5 elZ e 00007 €5 79800 Ty £E'E88'9C 0’06891 1588
06'2£9'08 26'689'94L BE'SHZ'eS $67/98'6L 80'EBELG BLGSL'LL Le'SPe'EEL 25868102 2reLS e 002PE0LE
2r'L0G'692 £GPRZ'G1E Z6'GRE'PLIE 0522292 oL'eezeLe 24591 '8re LZ'098's82 £2/ZT8GE pg'PIE SL 00'08L'ZLE
oz'enl e S00ZT'L6L 02'¢.E'558 06'26.'806 SE'85L'788 S0'861°1L08 0L'158" 188 'L OF'EPO'EaL’L S6'6EF'656 SEPA0'9R0'L
215°087'9LT oFL5TgLE 26'288'+82 £0°P0L'E8Z ZL059'FFE £1'$90'82¢ zLG0Tvee £6'649'065 84994105 L41L00'E8E
vR6L8'82E S 045902 L0’ 256's28 00'5PE'8EY 0GHE 0% 8LGLYBZY 82'eLZ'18E 97 8zh'96e PeoEL'g9Y $§6%2'EEy
CLZE6'422 0i'9p8'00Z S5°E09'¢EL easLzL0z 8260Z'rLE ZE'6R9'vLL YE'0LL'GEIZ 26'928'00E PTZ6L'9LZ 80°£20'601
L6'EE5'9ES'L BEL8FLPL'L POLETLSE' L ZL'09B'208'L 68'85.1'16E'L S ErYPLS ) SEErELEg'L selioer'L 64'292'80.L"L 0z'08G'arL'2
04 ZEv'ER) SOBEE'RLL STLOY 02 01081262 gL L6E'G62 £8°050'88E £5612'6EE YSGI6'EZE 08'9Ls'8ze 12892668
19489'216L £T'B9Z'255'L Lo88L'E6L"Y TLRIEOLLL Fratete-gn LYROS'R02 T ST EEEPLE'L 08'ELL'IGL'E LBTGETE'T STEEOLLE'E
LEVEZ'BZY'PS 98'90b' 08773 05'PL0'vEE'SS £9°60L'927'58 Z9'1Z8'EpS'eS SPE89'/09'6S 0E'859'0LL'SS PG REY'EYE'SS 85°/96'996'98 GLY 126'98
214 vige T4 [IiF4 ige BL0C 74 [ife4 120¢ 7202
RE M
ENEER

W2l LIBIHXZ

85uadxs 1ou BPIMNIDUISIP (10
senagoe adfysseusng

2 [BH8UILIaN0
REEEEN K]

SANIAIYA
sanuasss weBoud 1ousip @ioL

senuaass weibosd setanse adh) sseusng (eloL
suorguILeo pue sesd Bunesedy
BOIAIBS DO
seaes J0; saBiey
segianse adf-sseulsng

sanusAas Weboid selanoe (elueLLIBAGS (@103
suLnngUIues pue suels Bugelede
s99IABS J0) ssabiryD

'SAYIARDE |BIUBLILIBADD

NAA: X' ]

sesusdxe JsIp [E10).

2zuadxe SaAIDE adi-s3aUisng [BICL
a21MAG PO
‘semaner edf-ssauisng

sasuadxa sepALRe |euswiLeAcd (B0,

aep wua-Buc) Lo 1seseju
SI00UDS JapeYS) § |eisads
$80/BS LollePodsSUR JUARNIS
BOUBLBIUIRI PUE SuONEiado LRl
ABoOUYDE} UCHBLIICILI DUB SEDIAIBS [RILED
SEOIAJBS SANBASILILIDE DOUSS
SEOIAIES SANBASIUILER RISUAD
S@DAISS PEJE|al UORINIISUI B WBpMS

seoInes voddng

UCHINASWE IO

uonesnps [eEeds
sgnBay
“uonINSY|

110



FSTOT— p— F— -
86 CLE GEVS 28 SIE Chss 856k L 8258 26 20b'520'LS S E6LEYL IS 280851958 L0°ZLE'88P8 {18 '0r0'v05s) 98'8L1'IE8 #5'166'65¢8
(£5°200°2) PEEO0EL (82'789'0L) 9 EOZVT [T LEL (v2'0E68) [GATIXH] FINEED) PEERSSS
Z5°088 16t 86°LIE'8LD P& EER'BES SOPPLL00' £L8ET'ZOL'L SOELY'LES \EEvZ st RoLicosy) LAYt OLPLb'e0E
L8E65'9L0'8 SP'BYL'BLC8 "8 ceecas’s T 81965 098 6 E65vL906 6 ¥8°198'62001 YO PLE'ESZ0L LSF0L 09508 02785 S0E L1
(55508 6)
(58'905s)
1608 LLze
L8 ZASGLO'E SYEPL6IZ 6 9L 205 965 & v4'80,'L€6'8 9)°968'098'6 86 5PL 906 6 vE LOE €400 v VL6 B2 G 890,095 0L QZZBG'SOE 11
Tesoee) {00008 1) €629 BeL)
L9'GSE0L SPEPSSr pLLBSELE ZYSE'RL SOEPEETL 861LL'GE L0'2IG'SE PO0LZ'9E igi AN oZLLERL
00°092'95 Zo00b' 162 S5 L0528
D0'G08'$SE'E 00'9E6'SIE'E 00" LOL'BLE'S 00'996'L6E'E 00'96L'537'E COGLE'SRr'E 00'€5L'609'E Q0'868'Y0L'E QOEaR'eLa'E 00'2EE' 997 F
00°00£'69¢ 00'00L'548 $9'Z5E'eeE 0B0G0'wLE 00°6.8'698 CO00Y beE 00°002'25E Q0006 FEE 00008 4LE 00008008
00°ZEL'08E'SE 00°696' LAV SE 00 #09'£89'5S 00'522'264'58 00CEZTEIE'GS CO'BLL0E0'DS 00°950'67 1’88 00°SrR'ZZ2'03 00°108°2pE'0% 00'EYE'29Y'es
L0 ¥i6e (114 ]y pavir4 4 Bi0C Te0e 1208 THE
[SER[
FLFEEDT

W&o LIBIHX3

-V 8iNPaLDS YDy eameg

WAR oL

SBANTE adK-SsauIsngy
SNIALOE [EIUBLILIBADSD
NOLLISOd LTSN NI SONYH

SPIM-OLISE |50,

sepAlce adil-esauIsng [BIoL
siesse jeudes ;0 Juswagey
BWCDU| SROBUB(ISOSIN

ISBANOE pdAlssaUISNg

SaAgOR (EuaLIWwencd B10)

S1985E [ERdED Jo JuBwWRMmE Y

BLLODU] SNCAURISOSIN

sIeIS) lEuden

suopnquues pue sidelb pepulsann

BOAIBS 106D JOJ PAING] SOXEL

sesodind feieust jo) paing| sexe; Auedosd
: 108 [BIUBLILIBAGD

NOILISOd LEN NI

111



1-8 AINPBUIS YDV 192n08

SpURY [RIURLILISA0E JaLo [le (ej0 ]

§b L¥G6S [ D009/ '95% 9B'9tL'eLLS BLSBS ErLS LY SEF 098
S IKE'B SYLPSE 0008295 9gOEL'ELL 6EG65 2L Ly Sbb 00 peIsay
SPUN 4 1IUBLILIBAQCY JBUID) Y
¥SELL'BrST LEP0E0CaT 58075 6p0'C L6 PR PLL'E ZOZLEBLL'Y 1v'612°190°C LIPSl \ P ¥EE L06'E 26261 209°C 8L 1PEOGY'E puny eiaual 0L
00'585°802 00°'905'5¢ 00'zLL6L) (0G'es8'6L) (00'9gk z8) {00°562'16) (CO'615'601) (00'9E L '06} 1E'925 E6 1 [ZR7EA T (uayag)) peubisseun
71'220'98 05'700°1 65'LL8 00°'8.L€ 00'POLEE Lo1EPi8lL L8 2pL 0L 9 POs'S paubissy
OF'805°ELY'2S LB'E6L°€82°28 9BPIE 0L 166596520 ZOPOLELL'YS 08’880 LLE'PS LE'ELOLSLYS L& 0BP'200 b G004 20V LS & 998'080'ES pelousay
pun4 21eLsg
€10z [F04 giozg S10g 16 gige 8102 0262 a2 202

WE1a LIBIHXE

112



%4982 %66'E %ELE %SLE %LEE %ar'e %rZ'E %ZB'T %SE'Z %61°T
98 GEC €SS T 0BL CLIS TLOZPCIZ8 | TZ LT SPTE TBEVETIO S BC96F OIS (B 6I0CLES) 1B LICZPBE]  ([CEGOELES) (PP GERGPII)
(€1°629'821)
{e1629'02L)

(0000004 4) (00846'vse) {ZLegi'Lis) (16'p2E'arg)

00'000'0% 4 00'816'P6E ZLEQL'LES L6VZE'8re
$8'SET'EES £UBBLELL £LeEv'eLz ZT P2 SHT ER'EPSZL0'E 92'660 102 (sC°08E'PPE) {8z L18'1+0) {{z'gap'Lie) (bt5e8'srL)
811612256 8029, v/66 £0PLELEEDL IF'E5LE6L 0L 96'EPL LFE B LSBALEYSOL BEverorb Ly CeesPPB9ZE 6LBSO'GE0'EL FaSi'olE'p:
00°00. 76 00001 06 0000628 000sS0'rL 00'6/8'%8 C0'00F'PS 00002 2k 00006 62 00°008°LL 00°008'G
00°000°'GAL 00'000'662 00°000'062 00°000°008 00°000'608 00"000'00E 00'000°04E 00°000'50¢ 00'000'008 00'000'66Z
00'D6L'SL 00 262'26 05'056'2 004052l 00PLELL 00'SLL'0E 0006Z'0EL 06'880'e8L 002V 00 LbE'OLE
P =r A CO'EPLLT 00206842 LT A S LTEEE' LT 99'T62'8e $8'8IEL Pra-: ] 00088
BL'E2T'08 $0'248'628 £2°958'12E |89'520'428 L EL0'GET T0EE'esY BE'RLY' LI 0e' 10889, S'GFEERs 92'v0.L'88%
6Z'980'8r9'L BSBES'BSYL LI'BT985LL £L'156'5r8's ELPER'L0E'L £L6ar'eoL'T 8L PELOEE'E TP L8LLLE'T SLECY'OLS' 91928 Pre'E
PL0G'69T £5POZ'SIE ZE'SEE'PLE $0'622'297 OL'E9Z'BLE z259L'8vT L2098'98Z £ Le2'65E POrIELGE 00'08L'TLE
£L0EP'ESS LO'00L'GES B4 LST VS BS'ELB'ELY 2601289 $E6R6'299 LESZLOLE L1255 664 Zeebs I69 ZLE5L'BLL
£6'ZOF'95L $9'8EE'P1LT o9y 289'61Z JLg: rA1x4 £L°85Y 122 05086 LLT £LTHIVEE 90'vSL 652 S0'BLE'04Z 16°010'982
EZL88'E51 LW LEG'ESL LLLG0'eLE 20'658'P92 SEIS4'66E QLEQLFLE S0'ZOL'96T 15020'228 LE'S6E L LE'088'0rE
62290661 BLGLOTYL £E'0LL'EYL BZ'609'COL SE'8EL Ayt £0'ZER'ZOL 90:'29Z'851 pEEOE'ssL 898LL'6PL ZEPPEOSL
02'500'840'L 05'09%'868 8v'SEL 6 20'925'9:6 85'76L'TG8 10'610'256 95°064'486 SFEPLPSO'L LLB00'LOL'L LERBA0LLL
85ZFL 1961 SP'EBE'CL0'T 12'98E'S62'T LTLLLE00'T 29'P86'858'} Ob'£L0'648'L oL 168’299t S0'00L'C00E' 1S'29T i06'E BE'GOP'9EL'T
61'898'7L $6'6.6'811 1080811 LO'SEL'LZE BO'665 'YL ¥ ies'srL aLZG0'8LL 90°Z69'LLL 0E8LZ'ers 62'652'L6Z
£L'602'629 £6'298°06L ZR'0ES'ELL Ie'6E8'28L SL18r'81S \oize'ass LLLSL'95L IS FEE'Z2E 89'Z.5' 168 BU'EBLPEY
£9°009'€12'T TTLGR'ESL'E 992 e ZE'SBE'19Z'T EYBLE'0EF'E LPPREELER SSREL'LIS'T bl P39'ars’e Ly LLL'TOS'E OF'£58'896'Z
¥9'L2r'SG0DL 16'056 9L CL 942 'E09 0} E9'8E TR0 LL 6L /84 €L0'LL BLELZLEZ LY 6 YEQ'L0L LY SGIBL/eRLL 256.0'P2LEL  00'EEe oLy
S¥'8/E SCE Z0'64L ISE $9'688'80E EEEA 26'262'022 16°216'08C PLYPPOEET 00562 'C0E 00'ZZP069 656/ 686
267/90'690'y PE451°986'E SFGHZEEL'Y 8T PZPUTS Y 22'956'08E Y B8'PEG'BOS'Y 2LZ0LLLE'Y ZO'LIE'ERE'Y LY80LEPE'S L0 LERL0E'D
01944 SPBYE OF §1'580'5Z 26'PP0'SE SO'BOLIZL 86'LLL'SE 10'2.8'S6 PrEE2'LL 59'810'6 PLO0E'TE

£5°560'88 0B'0EE'6E 09'5ET'9 06'GLL'SE oF's26'sl oL'PFSZL

04198'8
00228'6Pe'5s 0U'SB0 ISR’ 00 L56'9r0 98 00°5TE'LLL'9S 00'461'€8Z'98 OUBLL'GEE'SS 00'0STI0G'es 00'GPL'ASEES 00'LOL'G9S'SS 00'6rLE0L 98
THOZ woe SI0E 4 TinE 9102 BIOZ 414 e 2E0%

24 BINPELDS YDV 90N0g

sainupuadxa (endesucy
10 ebmusniad e se sdIAes 1590

seouR|eg puny Ul abueyd 1N

{s@sn) saoinos Buiaueul Jauylo (810,
aiqeAiBoal siuelb peyaouen
110 S1B)SURI|
Ul siapsue|
{paplipng-uo:) seseq) [pudes
{sasn) seonos Bujsusuty JAYIO

sanypuadxe (jepun} JBAD
SBNUBAGY J0 (Adurione(]) S58aX3
sanppuadse 8101
selbiieys Jeyic pue 1salep|
jediouLy
@0IA06 1380
$jO0YSS JBUEYD
S|o0yes (Breeds
fegno [EideD
sjyaueq selopduy
SRS UoNRLICdSsIRY] Wepnig
BoUBUSIURI PUB Sutijaiedo ue)g
SEIAES |BAUSTD
SADAIBS BAREHSIUILPE [00UDS
SRNIAIGS BANEASILILPY [BIOUIC)
SECIAISS PRIBISS UONDNNSUL R JRpMS
uennL
sacinueg Boddng
B30
voesnps jeadg
Jejnfiay
UOROMISE
sesmyfpuadxy

&ruBAs. JBj0L
SQ0IN0S (RIBpS 4
S82IN0S WG
SNOBUB{IAISIA
1Y AL U S¢S SOLI0 WK RNy
ouny eaRss) eudes - sBules jsassu|
Ans| Xey

SanuaAsy

113



Fiscal Year
Ended June 30,

2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

Source: District Records

BOROQUGH OF SQUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE

UNAUDITED
Canceled Interest on

Tuition Accounts Payable Invesiments
$28.50 $803.09
1,175.25 2,19525
5,764.94
$67,978.10 18,168.02
14,888.35 8,877.02
7.847.60 1,977.27
14,732.40 1,813.89
5,822.64 2,238.11
35,089.36 2,046.36
5,442.29 2,679.76

114

Miscellaneous

$61,434.85
1,424.47
2,596.16
5425.95
10,013.14
104,974.35
2,993.52
11,647.27
8,413.73
2,833.78

EXHIBIT "J-3"

Total
$62,266.44
4,794 .97
8,361.10
91,572.07
33,778.51
114,799.22
19,539.81
18,708.02
45,549.45
10,955.81
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL. DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

UNAUDITED
Borough of South Bound Brook Board of Education Qverlapping Rates
Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and
Ended Obligation School Borough of Somerset Overlapping
Dec 31 Basic Rate (a) Debt Service (b) Tax Rate South Bound Brook County Tax Rate
2021 $1.977 $0.044 $2.021 $1.004 $0.462 $3.487
2020 1.828 0.048 1.876 0.990 0.451 3.317
2019 1.939 0.051 1.890 0.976 0.437 3.403
2018 1.631 0.054 1.985 0.983 0.416 3.384
2017 1.048 0.056 2.004 0.962 0.406 3.372
2018 1.841 0.119 1.960 0.942 0.394 3.296
2015 1.820 0.100 1.920 G.922 0.367 3.209
2014 1.745 0.120 1.865 0.902 0.3685 3.132
2013 1.697 0.085 1.782 0.863 0.343 2.988
2012 1.567 0.100 1.667 0.842 0.358 2.867

* revaluation

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector
{Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth [imitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased

by the cost of fiving or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxable

{b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"

BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
UNAUDITED

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)
Ended for the Percentage Collections in
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years
2022 $6,763,749.00 $6,763,749.00 100.00%
2021 6,665,101.00 6,665,101.00 100.00%
2020 6,557,745.00 6,557,745.00 100.00%
2019 6,501,256.00 6,501,256.00 100.00%
2018 6,385,119.00 6,385,119.00 100.00%
2017 6,283,195.00 6,283,195.00 100.00%
2016 6,171,325.00 8,171,325.00 100.00%
2015 6,046,957.00 6,046,957.00 100.00%
2014 5,8567,085.00 5,857,065.00 100.00%
2013 5,649,822.00 5,649,822.00 100.00%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)
Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is

required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30

2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHQOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF NET BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Qutstanding

General
Obligation
Bonds

$295,000.00

595,000.00

900,000.00
1,210,000.00
1,510,000.00
1,815,000.00
2,115,000.00
2,405,000.00
2,690,000.00

Deductions

Net General
Bonded Debt

Qutstanding

$0.00
295,000.00
595,000.00
900,000.00
1,210,000.00
1,510,000.00
1,815,000.00
2,115,000.00
2,405,000.00
2,690,000.00

Percentage of
Actual Taxable
Value (a) of

Property

0.08912%
0.18056%
0.27312%
0.37960%
0.47372%
0.56626%
0.65832%
0.74196%
0.82988%

EXHIBIT "J-11"

Per Capita {b)

65.29
131.70
197.72
259.82
327.48
392.69
457.50
510.78
582.88

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(a) See Exhibit N} J-6 for property tax data.
{b} Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-14.
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EXHIBIT "4-12"

BOROUGH QF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOQL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER, 31, 2021

UNAUDITED
Estimated Estimated Share
Debt Percentage of Overlapping

Governmental Unit Qutstanding Applicable (a} Debt
Debt repaid with properly taxes

South Bound Brook Borough $4,013,727.91 100.00% $4,013,727.91
Other debt

Somerset County 268,745,719.63 0.51% 1,362,968.85

Middlesex County Utilities Authority 129,942,730.00 0.53% 688,606.47
Subtotal, overlapping debt $6,065,393.23
South Bound Brook Borough School District Direct Debt
Total direct and overlapping debt $6,065,393.23

Source: Borough of South Bound Brook Chief Financial Officer, Somerset County Treasurer's Office and Middiesex
County Utilities Authority

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of South Bound Brook. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term
debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that
every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment.

(a) For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property

values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within
the district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.
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EXHIBIT "J-14"

BOROUGH OF SQUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL RISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

UNAUDITED
Per Capita Unemployment
Year Popuiation (a) Personal Income {b} Personal Income (¢} Rate {d)
2021 4,804 * * 7.70%
2020 4,518 $509,743,350.00 $112,825.00 11.90%
2019 4,535 479,784,492 .00 108,916.00 4.20%
2018 4,562 453,074,216.00 1086,194.00 4.30%
2017 4,565 420,835,376.00 99,533.00 5.30%
2016 4516 398,723,650.00 92,248.00 5.20%
2015 4,524 377,200,593.00 88,350.00 8.50%
2014 4,535 355,589,784.00 83,433.00 7.60%
2013 4,554 342,028,050.00 78,462.00 2.00%
2012 4 555 325,311,850.00 75,171.00 12.80%
Source:;

{a) Population information provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.

(b} Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal poputation and per capita personal income presented.

(c} Per capita personal income by municipality was computed using Census Bureau midyear population estimates.
Estimates for 2012-2021 refiect county population.

{d) Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.

* Not Available
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BOROUGH OF SOUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOQL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE

Undistributed expenditures - Required maintenance for school facilities - 11-000-261-XXX

School Facilities *
Project #(s)

2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

Total School Facilities

* . School facilities as defined under EFCFA.
{(N.JAC. BA:26-1.2 and N.J.A.C. BA26A-1.3)

Source: District records

UNAUDITED

128

Robert Morris
School

$111,167.00
101,567.98
146,170.87
135,896.45
132,613.70
79,652.45
86,350.30
104,833.89
95,763.45
88,206.83

$1,082,122.92

EXHIBIT "J-19"



BORQUGH OF SQUTH BOUND BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
INSURANCE SCHEBULE

New Jersey School Boards Association
Insurance Group
Property Coverage:
Blanket Real and Personal Property
Blanket Extra Expense
Blanket Valuable Papers and Records
Sublimits:
Flood

JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

Demolition and increased Cost of Construction

Earthguake
Electronic Data Processing:
Blanket Hardware and Software
Boiler and Machinery Coverage:
Property Damage
Crime Coverage:
Money and Securities Limit
Employee Dishonesty
Pubtic Official Bond Limit - Board Treasurer
Public Official Bond Limit - Board Secretary
Generat Liability Coverage:
Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Sexual Abuse Claims
Personal Injury and Advertising injury
Employee Benefit Liability
Automobile Coverage:;
Bodily Injury and Property Damage

Source: District Records
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Coverage Amount

$500,000,000.00

50,000,000.00
10,000,000.00

75,000,000.00
25,000,000.00
50,000,000.00

500,000.00
500,000,000.00

100,000.00
500,000.00
200,000.00
100,000.00

31,000,000.00
17,000,000.00
31,000,000.00
31,000,000.00

31,000,000.00

EXHIiBIT "J-20"

Deductible

$5,000.00
5,000.00
5,000.00

500,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00

1,000.00

1,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION




EXHIBIT "K-1"

SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
County of Somerset

South Bound Brook, New Jersey 08880

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, and the standards applicable {o financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the Borough of South
Bound Brook School District (the "District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 21, 2023.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of
South Bound Brook School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in infernal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, o prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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SurLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contro! that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. We noted other matters that have
been reported to the South Bound Brook Board of Education of the South Bound Brook School
District in a separate Auditor's Management Report on Administrative Findings — Financial and
Compliance dated February 21, 2023.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ao oy ¢

CERTIFIED PuBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

)

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

February 21, 2023
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EXHIBIT "K-2"

SuPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

308 Kast Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-8300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO MAJOR FEDERAL
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AND WITH
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Borough of South Bound Brook School District
County of Somerset

South Bound Brook, New Jersey 08880

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited Borough of South Bound Brook School District, County of Somerset, State
of New Jersey (the “District”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as
subject to audit in the Federal OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB State Grant
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’'s major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2022, The District's major federal and state
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States; the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and
the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement. Qur responsibilities under those
standards, the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our
report.
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We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to the District’s federal and state programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to cobtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance bhut is not ahsolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement
will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would infiuence the judgment made
by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District's compliance with the
requirements of each major federal or state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement, we:

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ lIdentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the District's compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

+ Obtain an understanding of the District's interna!l control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the
New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness
in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

b Oy b Lo,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

it/ |

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 248

February 21, 2023
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT "K-5°
Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2022

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance include federal and state activity of the Board of Education, Borough of
South Bound Brook School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1
to the Board'’s basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received
directly from the federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state
financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financials assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and federal awards and
state financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with
the exceptions of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented
using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described
in Note 1 of the Board’s basic financial statements. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Uniform
Guidance, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The
District has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
aliowed under the Uniform Guidance.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund
on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
regulated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid
payment in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, that payment is not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state
aid payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the
accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related
revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not.
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Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
($43,160.00) for the general fund and $94,786.18 for the special revenue fund.
See the notes to the required supplementary information for a reconciliation of the
budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and
special revenue funds. Federal awards and state financial assistance revenues
are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total

General Fund $6,307,837.01 $6,307,837.01
Special Revenue Fund $989,795.49 989,795.48
Food Service Fund 269,126.92 5,624.29 274,651.21

GAAP Basis $1,258,922 .41 $6,313,361.30 $7.572,283.71

Budgetary Adjustment (94,786.18) 43,160.00 {51,626.18)
Total Awards &

Financial Assistance $1,164,136.23 $6,356,521.30 $7,520,657.53

NOTE 4: RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal and state financial reports.

NOTE 5: OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported in the Food Distribution Program represent
current year value received and current year distributions respectively. The
amount reported as TPAF pension contributions, post-retirement medical benefits
and long-term disability insurance represents the amount paid by the state on
behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2022. TPAF Social Security
contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's
share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June
30, 2022.
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Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section | — Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

(1)
(2)

(3)

Type of Auditor's Report Issued:
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
(a) Material weakness identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
fo be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted?

Federal Program(s) -

M

@)

3

(4)

(%)

internal Control Over Major Federal Programs:
(a) Material weaknesses identified?

(b} Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major federal
Programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2CFR 200.516a of the Uniform Guidance

Identification of Major Federal Program(s):

Program CFDA

Education Stabilization Fund:
ESSER 1l - ARP ESSER 84 4250/84 425U

Dollar Threshold used to distinguish hetween type A and
Type B programs?

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance?
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Unmodified

No

No

No

No

No

Unmodified

No

$750,000.00

No



Borough of South Bound Brook School District

Schedule ¢ of Findings and Questsoned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results (Continued)

State Program(s) -

(1) Internal Control Over Major State Programs:

EXHIBIT ‘K-6"

(a) Material weakness identified? No
(a) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? No
(2) Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major state
program(s)? Unmodified
(3) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 15-087 No
(4) Identification of Major State Program(s):
Grant
Program Number
State Aid Public Cluster:
Special Education Categorical Aid 22-495-034-5120-011
Equalization Aid 22-495-034-5120-078
Categorical Security Aid 22-495-034-5120-084

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions 22-495-034-5094-003

(5)  Program Threshold Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B State Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

&) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under N.J. OMB Circular 15-087?

140

Yes



EXHIBIT "K-8"
Borough of South Bound Brook School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section 1l - Financial Statement Audit — Reported Findings Under Government Auditing
Standards

internal Contro! Findings

None Reported

Compliance Findings

None Reported

Section Ill - Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and State Programs

Federal Programs — None Reported

State Programs — None Reported
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EXHIBIT *K-7"

Borough of South Bound Brook School District

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Not Applicable
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